
 
Alternate Formats: Persons with disabilities may request materials in alternative formats. Persons with hearing impairments 
may access the Washington State Telecommunications Relay Service at 711. 
Title VI: Kirkland’s policy is to fully comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act by prohibiting discrimination against any person 
on the basis of race, color, national origin or sex in the provision of benefits and services resulting from its programs and 
activities. Any person who believes his/her Title VI protection has been violated, may file a complaint with the City. 
To request an alternate format, file a complaint or for questions about Kirkland’s Title VI Program, contact the Title VI 
Coordinator at 425-587-3011 or titlevicoordinator@kirklandwa.gov. 
 
The City of Kirkland strives to accommodate people with disabilities. Please contact the City Clerk’s Office at 425.587.3190, or 
for TTY Services call 425.587.3111 (by noon the work day prior to the meeting) if we can be of assistance. If you should 
experience difficulty hearing the proceedings, please bring this to the attention of the Chairperson by raising your hand. 

 KIRKLAND PARK BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
Date: January 13, 2021 
Time: 7:00 p.m. 
Place: Meeting to be held virtually, via Zoom 

  
The mission of the Park Board shall be to provide policy advice and assistance 

to the Department of Parks and Community Services and City Council in order to ensure the effective provision 
of Parks and Community Services programs and facilities to the residents of the City of Kirkland. 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL  
  
3. WELCOME/INTRODUCTION OF NEW MEMBERS  
   
4. ITEMS FROM THE AUDIENCE   
  
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

a. February 2020 
 
6.  BUSINESS ITEMS 

a. Chair/Vice-Chair Elections  
b. Plaza of Champions Nomination  
c. Capital Projects Update  
d. Park Board Retreat Planning   

 
7. COMMUNICATIONS  

a. Correspondence 
b. Department Monthly Report 
c. Staff Updates and Information 
d. Park Board member reports 
e. Comments from the Chair 

 
  

mailto:titlevicoordinator@kirklandwa.gov
https://www.kirklandwa.gov/Government/Departments/Parks-and-Community-Services/About-Parks-and-Community-Services/Reports-and-Studies


 

KIRKLAND PARK BOARD 
Minutes of Regular Meeting 
February 12, 2020 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
February 12, 2020, Park Board Regular meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Chair Susan 
Baird-Joshi. 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
Members Present: Chair Susan Baird-Joshi, Vice-Chair Amanda Judd, Richard Chung, Mike 
Holland, Daniel Triplett, Rosalie Wessels 
 
Members Absent: Uzma Butte 
 
Staff Present: Linda Murphy, Mary Gardocki, John Lloyd, Jason Filan 
 
Recording Secretary: Heather Lantz-Brazil 
 
3. SPECIAL PRESENTATION 
 
4. ITEMS FROM THE AUDIENCE 
 
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Ms. Baird-Joshi suggested amending the meeting minutes to add a hyphen to “Baird-Joshi” 
under the Roll Call section. Ms. Judd moved to approve the January 08, 2020 meeting minutes 
as amended. Motion seconded by Ms. Wessels. Motion passed. 
 
6. BUSINESS ITEMS 
 
a. 132nd Sq. Park – 30% Design Review 
 
Mary Gardocki, Parks Planning and Development Manager gave an overview of the design 
process. Craig Skipton, Director of Landscape Architecture and Caroline Templeton, Senior 
Landscape Project Manager from AHBL gave a presentation on the 30% design development of 
132nd Square Park. Consultants and staff answered questions from the Board. 
 
b. Feedback from Community on Active Amenities in Parks 
 
Jason Filan, Parks Operations Manager provided a brief overview of the feedback gathering 
process regarding active amenities in parks. The Board shared with Staff feedback received 
from the community on possible active amenities to be installed in 2020. 
 
c. Playground Replacement Process 
 



Kirkland Park Board Minutes 
February 12, 2020 

Page 2 
 
Mary Gardocki, Park Planning and Development Manager explained the Playground 
Replacement Process, including the process for replacement of the play structure at the North 
Kirkland Community Center. Staff answered questions from the Board. 
 
7. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
a. Correspondence 
 
b. Department Monthly Report 
 
Staff answered questions from the Board during the discussion of the department's monthly 
report. 
 
c. Staff Updates and Information 
 
Staff shared upcoming Parks and Community Services agenda items on the next City Council 
meeting. Staff also shared the following: 
 

• Totem Lake Park award will be on the February 18, 2020 City Council consent agenda 
• Finn Hill Middle School ribbon-cutting event on March 2, 2020 
• North Kirkland Community Center Open House from 10 a.m. to noon on March 3, 2020 
• 132nd Square Park 30% Design presented to City Council on March 3, 2020 

 
d. Park Board member reports 
 
Board members reported on attending neighborhood meetings and community events. 
 
e. Comments from the Chair 
 
February 13, 2020 at 4 p.m. is the deadline to apply for Kirkland advisory boards. Interviews for 
Park Board will be held on March 19, 2020. On May 13, 2020, the Board should prepare to 
discuss possible topics to bring to City Council for a future study session. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Ms. Wessels moved to adjourn the meeting. Mr. Chung seconded. The motion passed and the 
meeting was adjourned at 9:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
________________________________   _____________________________ 

Heather Lantz-Brazil, Recording Secretary  Susan Baird-Joshi, Chair 
Parks and Community Services  Park Board 



 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Department of Parks and Community Services 
123 Fifth Avenue, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587.3000 
www.kirklandwa.gov  

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Park Board 
 
From: John Lloyd, Deputy Director, Parks and Community Services 
 Mary Gardocki, Park Planning and Development Manager 
  
Date: January 4, 2021 
 
Subject: Election of Chair and Vice-Chair  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Park Board conduct elections to fill the positions of Chair and Vice-Chair for 2021. 
Another option is to table the election to a future meeting given the unusual circumstance with 
COVID19 cancelling most meetings in 2020. 
 
BACKGROUND DISCUSSION 
 
Kirkland Municipal Code 3.36.040 states that the Park Board Chair and Vice-Chair will be elected 
annually to a one-year term and elections will be held at the Board’s final meeting of the year. 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Park Board only held two meetings in 2020. When the 
pandemic began, it was not known that the Board would not hold any further meetings in 2020. 
As such, no elections were conducted in 2020 for 2021 positions.  

The Chair is responsible for presiding over Park Board meetings. The Chair may be called on to 
attend other meetings with City Council, the community, or staff. The Vice-Chair is responsible 
for performing the duties of the Chair in the event the Chair is not present.  Should the Chair be 
unable to complete their term, the Vice-Chair will assume the Chair position for the remainder 
of the year. The Chair and Vice-Chair may be asked to represent the Park Board by speaking at 
events, such as park dedication ceremonies or naming events. The Chair and Vice-Chair meet 
with Parks and Community Services staff to discuss issues and to assist in setting the agenda 
for upcoming meetings.  

The Chair may be re-elected once to serve a maximum of two years. The current Chair, Susan 
Baird-Joshi, has completed one year as the Chair.  No such term restriction is applied to the 
position of Vice-Chair. 

In the past, staff have sought and received feedback from Park Board members about the skills 
and abilities needed in the next Chair and Vice-Chair. Common responses include the following:  

• Strong organizational skills 
• Meeting facilitation skills  
• Time management/keeping discussions on topic  

6.a.

http://www.kirklandwa.gov/


• Finding a balance between ensuring everyone has a chance to speak yet ensuring
discussions do not drag on unnecessarily

• Ability to interpret and understand the thoughts and feelings of other Board members
• Knowledge of department

Board members should consider the demands of the position in addition to the identified skills 
and abilities when evaluating nominees during this election procedure. Board members should 
think about who possesses these skills and abilities, and who would make a good Chair/Vice-
Chair.  

The Chair will conduct the election process. During the election process, any Board member 
may nominate any other Board member, including themselves, for the position being elected. 
Nominations do not need to be seconded by another Board member; however, a nominee may 
decline the nomination if desired.  

Staff recommend the process outlined below for elections. 

1. Conduct the election for the Chair position first, followed by the Vice-Chair position.
2. The Chair begins the election procedure by calling for nominations for the open position

being considered.
3. Once all nominations have been made, the Chair closes the nomination period and gives

each nominee the opportunity to speak toward their desire for the position.
4. Once each nominee (who has accepted the nomination) has been given the chance to

speak, the Chair shall ask the Recording Secretary to call the vote.
5. The election will be conducted via roll call vote, in which the Recording Secretary will call

on each Board member to announce their vote. The Recording Secretary will repeat the
vote to ensure accuracy.

6. The nominee with the most votes will be declared the winner.
7. In the event of a tie, the voting process will be repeated with the tied nominees until

there is no longer a tie. The Chair may choose to provide a second opportunity for the
tied nominees to speak toward their desire for the position.

The new Chair/Vice-Chair will assume these positions following the adjournment of the Park 
Board meeting in which the election is conducted.  



 

 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Department of Parks & Community Services 
123 5th Avenue, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587.3300 
www.kirklandwa.gov  

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Park Board 
 
From: John Lloyd, Deputy Director 
 
Date: January 4, 2021 
 
Subject: Plaza of Champions Nomination 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
That the Park Board review the nomination of Wes Carpenter for Kirkland’s Plaza of Champions 
and forward a recommendation to the City Council.  
 
Background 
 
The Plaza of Champions was initiated in 1988 to honor and recognize those groups and 
individuals in the greater Kirkland area who have reached the pinnacle of achievement in their 
chosen field and have, through that achievement, contributed in a significant way to our 
community. This contribution may be in providing state, national, or international recognition 
for Kirkland and its residents, and/or improving the quality of life for a significant segment of 
the greater Kirkland community.  Honorees are inducted with a public ceremony and have a 
bronze plaque installed in their honor at the Plaza of Champions near Marina Park. 
 
The Park Board has been established as the review panel to consider and make 
recommendations on all nominations. Final acceptance is determined by the City Council.   
 
Criteria adopted by the City Council for the Plaza of Champions are intended to be both broad 
and flexible (Attachment 1). However, the standards set for this tribute are intended to be 
high.  
 
The following criteria are used in selecting inductees into the Plaza of Champions:  
 

I. Local, State, National, or International Level of Achievement 
II. Identity with Greater Kirkland 

III. Significance of Achievement 
IV. History of Achievements, including: documents, press clippings, photos or other 

examples of media coverage related to the achievement. 
 

A list of prior honorees is provided as Attachment 2. 
   
 

6.b.

http://www.kirklandwa.gov/


 
 

Kirkland resident, Wes Carpenter, has been nominated for induction into the Plaza of 
Champions for his achievements related to his service in the Army. Please see the attached 
nomination packet that has been submitted on his behalf (Attachment 3). 
 
Criteria I – Level of Achievement - Level of Achievement must be highest possible, unique, 
and/or exceptional in chosen field or endeavor. 
 
Mr. Carpenter received the Bronze Star Medal for Heroism with Valor, and the Army 
Commendation Medal for saving many lives while serving in Vietnam. While not the highest 
honor that can be achieved for service in the Army, the Bronze Star is a significant award.  
 
Conclusion: Staff believes that these achievements are exceptional and meet the criteria 
established for Level of Achievement. 
 
Criteria II – Identity With Kirkland - Applicant must meet at least 2 of the following 
criteria: 
 
_X_ 2.1 Born in Kirkland  
_X_ 2.2 Currently Resides in Kirkland  
_X_ 2.3 Lived in Kirkland at least 10 yrs. 
_X_ 2.4 Improved quality of life in Kirkland 
_X_ 2.5 Works in or owns Kirkland business 
___ 2.6 Other justification 
 
Conclusion: Staff have determined that Mr. Carpenter meets at least 2 of the identified criteria 
established for Identity with Kirkland. 
 
Criteria III – Significance of Achievement - Applicant must meet at least 1 of the following 
criteria: 
 
_X   3.1 Recognition of achievement by Kirkland Community  
_X   3.2 Peers recognize achievement as outstanding  
___ 3.3 Played a key role in group effort 
___ 3.4 Achievement improved quality of life 
 
Conclusion: Staff has determined that Mr. Carpenter meets at least 1 of the identified criteria 
established for Significance of Achievement. 
 
History Requirement 
Information has been provided as part of the nomination packet and satisfies this requirement. 
 
Conclusion 
 
Staff has reviewed the nomination and believes that Mr. Carpenter meets or exceeds the 
adopted criteria for induction into Kirkland’s Plaza of Champions. Following discussion by the 
Park Board, staff will present the Board’s recommendation to City Council for a final decision. If 
this nomination is approved by Council, staff will work with Mr. Carpenter and his family to 
schedule a public induction ceremony later in the year. 
 
 



 
 

Attachments: 
 
1 – Nomination Guide 
2 – List of Past Honorees 
3 – Nomination Packet 
 
 
 
 



KIRKLAND PLAZA OF CHAMPIONS 
Nomination Guide 

 
 

CRITERIA AND ELEMENTS 
 
An applicant for recognition should satisfy the listed minimum number of the elements from 
each of the three (3) criteria listed below.  Applicants must meet the eligibility requirement listed 
in Criterion I, must meet at least two (2) of the elements from Criterion II, and must meet at least 
one (1) of the elements from Criterion III.   
 
In addition, the applicant must also furnish a history of achievements.  These achievements 
must have occurred at least one calendar year prior to submission of the application.  The honor 
cannot be conferred unless the history is provided. 
 
Applicants will be reviewed by the Kirkland Park Board, whose decision will be final. 
 

CRITERION I 
 

LOCAL, STATE, NATIONAL, OR INTERNATIONAL LEVEL OF ACHIEVEMENT 
 

The following basic eligibility requirement must be met before a nominee can be considered for 
possible induction. 
 
ELEMENTS: 
 
1.1 Level of Achievement 
 
The level of achievement by the individual or team must be explicitly stated and should be the 
highest possible level of achievement in fields such as science, education, athletics, the arts 
(music, drama, literary, fine arts, etc), medicine, debate, etc. 
 
The Plaza of Champions is not intended to recognize lifelong or enduring achievement in a 
particular field unless the applicant has previously received an award for such lifelong 
achievement. 
 
This basic achievement element also provides the opportunity for nomination of first-time 
achievements (examples: first Kirkland resident to swim the English Channel, first Kirkland 
individual or group to participate in a national competition, etc.). 
 
If it is not possible to identify the highest possible level of achievement, the applicant must 
provide a detailed explanation as to why the achievement is considered to be exceptional. 
 

CRITERION II 
 

IDENTITY WITH GREATER KIRKLAND 
 

Applicant must consider Kirkland to be his/her home or identify with Kirkland in such a way that 
the Kirkland community recognizes the applicant as a “Kirklander.” 

Page 1 of 3 

 

Attachment 1



At least two (2) of the following elements must be met before a nominee can be considered for 
possible induction. 
 
ELEMENTS: 
 
2.1 Born in the Kirkland area. 
 

This means that the parent(s) were residing in Kirkland at the time of the candidate’s 
birth. 

 
2.2 Currently resides in Great Kirkland area. 
 

Applicant currently has a Kirkland address.  Applicant must live at this address at least 
six months of the year. 

 
2.3 Lived in Greater Kirkland area for at least ten years or longer and consider 

Kirkland their home town. 
 
2.4 Has improved the quality of life in Greater Kirkland. 
 
2.5 Worked (or has worked) within the community or owns a business in Greater 

Kirkland area. 
 

The applicant is a past or present Kirkland area business owner or worker who has 
contributed in a special way to the community. 
 

2.6 None of the above. 
 

An applicant may still be considered even if the preceding elements do not apply.  
Substantial documentation, however, will be required in this instance so as to 
demonstrate the applicant’s identity with Greater Kirkland.  

 
 

CRITERION III 
 

SIGNIFICANCE OF ACHIEVEMENT 
 

The applicant must fully explain the significance of the achievement.  It must be further specified 
if the achievement is the result of an individual or team effort.  No individual members of a team 
will be recognized.  The team members, however, may be recognized by name. 
 
At least one (1) of the following elements must be met before a nominee can be considered for 
possible induction. 
 
ELEMENTS: 
 
3.1 Recognition of the achievement by the Kirkland community. 
 

Page 2 of 3 

Applicant must submit a statement which explains how the community has been affected 
by the achievement as well as the manner in which the community was informed (e.g., 



press coverage received subsequent to achievement – include press clippings and any 
other examples of media coverage). 
 

3.2 Peers recognize this achievement as outstanding. 
 

Persons in the same field must recognize the achievement as outstanding and worthy of 
recognition.  A statement of endorsement for the applicant from leaders in the applicant’s 
field is expected.  The peer group may include a person, or persons, residing outside the 
Kirkland area. 
 

3.3 Played a key role in a group effort which without this individual’s achievement 
would not have taken place. 

 
The candidate formed an organization or group and was instrumental in making it 
operational.  The group or organization benefited the community in a demonstrable way. 
 

Page 3 of 3 

3.4 The achievement has improved the quality of life for a large segment of  
Greater Kirkland area residents. 
 
For example, the achievement may have resulted in increased educational or 
recreational opportunities for area residents. 
 

HISTORY REQUIREMENT 
 

The history and description of the achievements must be in narrative form and in 
sufficient detail to completely support the conferring of this award.  The person or 
persons writing the history must provide sufficient in-depth history to enable future 
readers to completely appreciate the significance of the applicant’s contribution.  Include, 
if possible, documents, press clippings, photos, or other examples of media coverage 
related to the achievement. 
 
If the history is written by anyone other than the applicant, it must be read and signed by 
the applicant (when possible) and thus documented as a true and accurate account.  If 
the award is conferred, the history will be placed in the Kirkland Library to serve as a 
reference and permanent record of the achievement. 
 



ATTACHMENT 2 
 

KIRKLAND PLAZA OF CHAMPIONS HONOREES 
 

1988 JoAnne Gunderson Carner L.P.G.A. Hall of Fame Golfer 
 
1989 Rick Acton N.W.P.G.A. Champion Golfer 
 
 Dorothy "Didi" Anstett 1968 Miss U.S.A. 
 
 Hot Dog U.S.A. World Champion Rope-Skipping Team 
 
 1980 Kirkland National Little 3rd Place in Little League World Series 
 League All-Stars 
 1982 Kirkland National Little Little League World Series Champions 
 League All-Stars 
 1975 Tyee/Bel-Kirk Senior Babe Ruth Baseball World Champions 
 Babe Ruth Team 
 
 Andrew Okada Collegiate Boxing Champion 
 
 Steven Earl Todd Champion Wheelchair Athlete 
 
1991 Demetri Corahorgi Medal of Honor Recipient 
 
 1974 Kirkland National Little 2nd Place in Little League World Series 
 League Girls’ Softball Team 
 
 1980, 1990, 1991 Northwest National Christian College Athletic  
 College Women's Basketball Teams Association National Champions 
 
1992 Julie Ann Gregg Bicycle Racing Champion 
 
 Chris Sharp 1990 Peabody Award for Excellence in Broadcast 
  Journalism 
 
1993 Rick Colella 1976 Olympic Bronze Medalist - Swimming 
 
1994 1993 Kirkland/District 9 Big Little League World Champions 
 League Softball Team 
 
1995 Maxine Conover 1958 U.S. National Women's Bicycling Champion 
 
1996 Glen Ethier 1972 International Broadcasting Award and 1973   
  CLIO Awards for Excellence in Broadcast Advertising 
 
1998 1963 Lakeside Gravel Baseball Team 1963 Connie Mack Baseball National Champions 
 
2001 Randall Garretson 1964 Junior National Ski Jumping Champion  

1964 Nordic Combined Junior National Champion 
 
2013  Chris Warren 2008 Emmy Award Excellence in Broadcasting 
 
2015 Billy and Cory Roeseler Inventors and Pioneers of the Sport of Kiteboarding 
 
2017 Kathy Smith Connor  Competitive Swimming Champion 



October 4, 2020 

Ms. Susan Baird-Joshi 

Ms. Amanda Judd 

Ms. Uzma Butte 

Mr. Richard Chung 

Mr. Mike Holland 

Mr. Daniel Triplett 

Parks and Community Services 

Plaza of Champions 

123 Fifth Avenue 

Kirkland, WA 98033 

RE: Nomination for Plaza of Champions for Wes Carpenter 

Dear Members of the Kirkland Park Board, 

My name is Shelli Craig and I'm a 4th generation Kirkland resident. In September my mom and I 

signed up for the Parks Department Scavenger Hunt about the History of Kirkland. In working 

through the historic clues with my mom and dad I realized how much they know about 

Kirkland. They both were born in the Kirkland Hospital and have lived in Kirkland their entire 

lives. While working on the clues one of them lead us to the Plaza of Champions at the Marina. 

There we had to find the name of a local military person that is honored there for receiving a 

medal serving in the U.S. Navy. I realized then that my dad, Wes Carpenter, should also be 

honored in the Plaza of Champions. While serving in Vietnam he received Bronze Star Medal for 

Heroism with Valor and the Army Commendation Medal for saving many lives. 

I believe he is truly a Kirkland hero and upstanding citizen. It has been 53 years since his 

honorable discharge from the Army and I believe honoring my dad in the Plaza would be an 

appropriate honor to bestow upon this great Kirkland native, and generous, wonderful man. 

Tha
i 

Y

i

u for y
�

ur consideration of this nomination. 

'sdifraig 

Enclosures: 

Nomination Application Form 

Presentation of Wes Carpenter's tour in Vietnam 





 



 





 





W e s  C a r p e n t e r                  P l a z a  o f  C h a m p i o n s                 P a g e  2 | 27 

formed in her garden.  Shortly before her death in 2006 that flower was recognized as a new species and 

named the Ella Carpenter. Wes is one of 5 children in the Carpenter family, all still living, that lived and raised 

families in Kirkland.  

One of Wes’ first jobs was working at Rocket U-Save Oil Co. gas station in Houghton.  He made the newspaper 

for trying to stop a robbery.  Wes married his Lake Washington High School sweetheart and Houghton native, 

Carol Wilson, daughter of Clyde and Senja “Pat” Wilson. Her dad was a Houghton Police Officer and reserve 

Firefighter, and a mechanic for Smith Gandy Ford and HOS trucking. Shortly after his wedding Wes was 

deployed to Vietnam.  When he returned from Vietnam, he rented a home on Slater until he built his house on 

his parent’s property also on Slater. In 1969 he moved his family into the finished home and still resides there 

today.   

His wife, Carol, became a Hairdresser and worked at the Hair Tamer in Kingsgate before Wes converted one 

side of their garage into a hair salon so she could work from home to be there for their two children, Eddy and 

Shelli. In the late 1960s Wes coached many years of little league.  He then went on to coach the Kirkland Babe 

Ruth team, sponsored by Bel-Kirk Motors, for a few years and the team won two Regional Tournaments and 

two State Championships. He also served as the Chinook League as President and as Assistant State Director 

for two years. Wes’ dad died when Wes was 28.  His youngest sister and brother were still attending Lake 

Washington High School at the time.  Later when his sister got married, he took the place of his dad to give her 

away at her wedding. Wes worked his way up in the Langendorf Bread Company and finished his career in a 

regional position at Associated Grocers before retiring in 2006.  He raised his children in Kirkland through 

baseball and softball leagues, and now his 5th generation Kirkland resident grandson attends Lake Washington 

High School, Conner Craig. He takes pride that his daughter, Shelli Craig, has been serving the City as an 

employee for over 15 years.  Wes has many siblings, cousins, nieces and nephews that still reside in Kirkland. 

He considers Kirkland his home town and can cite many changes to the City including one of his favorite 

memories when there was only one stop light between downtown Kirkland and Fall City and it was for the 

Kirkland ferry dock traffic.  Wes and Carol celebrated their 55th wedding anniversary this year and still live in 

the same house. Wes has been a good citizen and friend to anyone he meets. If you pass him walking his 

grand-dog in the morning on Slater you will be greeted by a wave and a welcome to start up a conversation. 

Wes has lived in Kirkland his entire life, 77 years this coming December, 2020.   

Significance of Achievement 
This is the History of Wesley Carpenter’s tour in the Army which lead to receiving the Bronze Star Medal for 

Heroism with Valor and the Army Commendation Medal.  In 1965 the United States was engaged in a military 

action in Vietnam. Wesley Carpenter, a 3rd generation resident of Kirkland, was drafted into the Army in April 

of 1965 at the age of 21.  He attended basic training at Fort Leonard Wood, Missouri.  In July he transferred to 

Advanced Infantry Training at Fort ORD, California and then attended Drill Sergeant School eventually 

becoming an Assistant Drill Sergeant.  In December his orders were changed from being a Drill Sergeant to 

being deployed to combat in Vietnam as part of Charlie Company, 2nd Battalion of the 1st Infantry Division’s 



W e s  C a r p e n t e r                  P l a z a  o f  C h a m p i o n s                 P a g e  3 | 27 

16th Infantry, aka The Big Red 1.  Before shipping to Vietnam, he returned home to Kirkland to marry his high 

school sweetheart, Carol Wilson from Houghton.   

Wes Carpenter arrived in Vietnam in January of 1966.  In April of 1966 his C Company was sent into the jungle 

in Operation Abilene.  Far into the jungle and without backup his Company was ambushed by hostile forces.  

He laid down a base of fire in his assigned sector.  He continued placing a steady and deadly stream of 

accurate fire into the Viet Cong position until his weapon was shot from his hand. At this time, he was so 

seriously wounded that he could no longer hold his weapon.  Looking around his position, he saw many other 

wounded laying about him.  Though not a trained medical aidman, he rendered first aid in a most professional 

manner.  Working under fire and without adequate bandage, he improvised dressing to stop the bleeding.  His 

prompt action saved the lives of many comrades who would have bled to death if left unattended.  After 

treating the wounded, he did what he could to aid and comfort the men in hope of easing some of the pain.  

He constantly reassured the men that help was on the way.  While moving among the patients, he found an 

unmanned radio which he picked up and moved to a central location.  For the remainder of the night he 

rendered periodic reports to the acting company commander.  Throughout the action he was constantly busy 

moving among his patients and monitoring the radio.  PFC Carpenter’s outstanding display of aggressiveness, 

devotion to duty, and personal bravery is in keeping with the finest traditions of the military service and 

reflects great credit upon himself, the 1st Infantry Division and the United States Army. Mr. Wes Carpenter, 

PFC Carpenter, U.S. Army, was awarded the Bronze Star Medal with Valor for heroism in connection with 

military operations in fierce combat with a Viet Cong battalion in the Battle of Abilene.  He was also awarded 

The Purple Heart for injuries sustained in this battle.   

After this battle PFC Carpenter returned home to Kirkland to spend time with his wife and family. When he 

returned back to Vietnam, he was assigned to driving ambush patrol teams in a deuce and a half truck. In 

December of 1966 PFC Carpenter was driving a truck which was carrying an ambush patrol on the return to 

base camp. Suddenly a large claymore mine was detonated beside the road and several casualties were 

sustained among the patrol members. The brake lines were severed and several tires were flat. PFC Carpenter 

immediately dismounted exposed himself to hostel sniper fire to check on his men. When PFC Carpenter had 

helped the wounded men and made what repairs he could to the truck, he returned to the cab and restarted 

the truck. In spite of extensive damage to the vehicle, he managed to drive it several miles over rough and 

unsecured roads to the nearest aid station. The outstanding courage displayed by PFC Carpenter was directly 

responsible for saving the lives of several men. PFC Carpenter’s actions are in keeping with the finest 

traditions of the military service and reflect great credit upon himself, the 1st Infantry Division, and the United 

States Army.  Mr. Wes Carpenter, PFC, U.S. Army, was awarded the Army Commendation Medal. 

Mr. Carpenter returned home to Kirkland in January of 1967 and received an honorable discharge from the 

Army.  

While on tour in Vietnam Wes was given a day off and went into Saigon. He had been fortunate enough to 

bring along a camera and took many pictures of the landscape, town, and people of Saigon to share when he 

came home. After returning from Vietnam, Wes did not talk much about his tour and did not consider himself 



W e s  C a r p e n t e r                  P l a z a  o f  C h a m p i o n s                 P a g e  4 | 27 

a hero. However, when asked by Lake Washington High School to come to classes to share what he learned 

about Vietnam he graciously brought along his slides and shared them with the students. He talked about the 

beauty of the landscape and the welcoming nature of the Vietnamese people in Saigon. The pictures of those 

Saigon slides are included in the attached presentation of Wes’s tour in Vietnam. 

Wes represented the City of Kirkland honorably while serving in the military and continues to do so as an 

upstanding citizen. 

This history and description of this achievement was recounted by Shelli Craig, Wes’s daughter, from 

conversations with Wes Carpenter and from newspaper clippings. 

              

   
   

 

 

 

To the Kirkland Park Board 

In September my mom and I signed up for the Parks Department Scavenger Hunt about the History of 

Kirkland.  In working through the historic clues with my mom and dad I realized how much they know about 

Kirkland. One of the clues led us to the Plaza of Champions at the Marina. There we had to find the name of a 

local military person that is honored there for receiving a medal serving in the U.S. Navy.  I realized then that 

my dad should also be honored in the Plaza of Champions. I believe he is truly a Kirkland hero. Vietnam ended 

in April of 1975.  Now 45 years later from that ending and 53 years since his honorable discharge from the 

Army, I believe honoring my dad in the Plaza would be an appropriate honor to bestow upon this great 

Kirkland native, upstanding citizen, and generous, wonderful man. 

Thank you for your consideration of this nomination. 

Shelli Craig 

  



W e s  C a r p e n t e r                  P l a z a  o f  C h a m p i o n s                 P a g e  5 | 27 

Significance of Achievement Documentation 

 

News article published in The Eastside Journal in December 1966 before shipping off to Vietnam: 

 

  



W e s  C a r p e n t e r                  P l a z a  o f  C h a m p i o n s                 P a g e  6 | 27 

Bronze Star Medal for Heroism with Valor Award Letter: 

 



W e s  C a r p e n t e r                  P l a z a  o f  C h a m p i o n s                 P a g e  7 | 27 

 

Bronze Medal article published by The Eastside Journal: 

 



W e s  C a r p e n t e r                  P l a z a  o f  C h a m p i o n s                 P a g e  8 | 27 

Battle of Abilene article published by The Eastside Journal. This is the battle that resulted in the Bronze Star 

Medal and The Purple Heart. 

 



W e s  C a r p e n t e r                  P l a z a  o f  C h a m p i o n s                 P a g e  9 | 27 

  



W e s  C a r p e n t e r                  P l a z a  o f  C h a m p i o n s                 P a g e  10 | 27 

Wes Carpenter did not talk much about his experiences in Vietnam until the movie The Last Full Measure 

came out in 2020 which recounts The Battle of Abilene.  In the movie the helicopter lowers the medic from a 

helicopter into the jungle to retrieve wounded men.  Wes helped clear the jungle for this maneuver and 

watched the medic lower down right next to him.  He is listed in the credits of this movie as one of the “Mud 

Soldiers” as they were referred to.  His name is listed as Wesley Carpenter. If you would like to see what Wes 

Carpenter experienced during the battle that resulted in the award of the Bronze Star Medal with Valor you 

can watch this movie as it is an accurate depiction of the battle. 

 

 

  



W e s  C a r p e n t e r                  P l a z a  o f  C h a m p i o n s                 P a g e  11 | 27 

Letter from Washington State Senator, Henry M. Jackson, to Wes Carpenter’s mom Ella. 

 

 

 



W e s  C a r p e n t e r                  P l a z a  o f  C h a m p i o n s                 P a g e  12 | 27 

Army Commendation Medal Award Letter: 

 

 

 



W e s  C a r p e n t e r                  P l a z a  o f  C h a m p i o n s                 P a g e  13 | 27 

 

Army Commendation Medal Certificate: 

 

 

 

  



W e s  C a r p e n t e r                  P l a z a  o f  C h a m p i o n s                 P a g e  14 | 27 

Article published in The Eastside Journal about the incident that led to the Army Commendation Medal.  

Wes is in picture on the right. 

 



W e s  C a r p e n t e r                  P l a z a  o f  C h a m p i o n s                 P a g e  15 | 27 

Article published in The Eastside Journal about Wes’ return home from Vietnam. 

 

  



W e s  C a r p e n t e r                  P l a z a  o f  C h a m p i o n s                 P a g e  16 | 27 

Purple Heart Medal Certificate: 

 

Article published in The Eastside Journal about the award of the Purple Heart. 

 



W e s  C a r p e n t e r                  P l a z a  o f  C h a m p i o n s                 P a g e  17 | 27 

Wes Carpenter’s Medals: 

 
The Bronze Star 
The Bronze Star has the distinction of being an award for heroism or achievement, offered 
to both U.S. troops and qualifying members of foreign military organizations. The Bronze 
Star was created in 1944 and can be presented for both valor and/or meritorious service. 

The Army Commendation Medal 
The Army Commendation Medal is awarded to any member of the Armed 
Forces of the United States other than General Officers who, while serving in 
any capacity with the Army after 6 December 1941, distinguished himself by heroism, 
meritorious achievement or meritorious service. Award may be made to a member of the 
Armed Forces of a friendly foreign nation who, after 1 June 1962, distinguishes himself by an 
act of heroism, extraordinary achievement, or meritorious service which has been of mutual 
benefit to a friendly nation and the United States. 

The Purple Heart 
This military medal awarded for wounds or loss of life in combat “as the result of an act of 
any opposing force” has its origins in the American Revolution. Originally created and 
presented as the Badge of Military Merit initiated by George Washington in 1782, the 
Purple Heart was created in 1932 based on Washington’s design and intent. 
  





W e s  C a r p e n t e r                  P l a z a  o f  C h a m p i o n s                 P a g e  19 | 27 

Wes Carpenter as Babe Ruth Chinook League president and Assistant State Director

 

 

  



W e s  C a r p e n t e r                  P l a z a  o f  C h a m p i o n s                 P a g e  20 | 27 

Wes Carpenter (top right) as team Manger and his brother Rick is a team player win State Championship. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



W e s  C a r p e n t e r                  P l a z a  o f  C h a m p i o n s                 P a g e  21 | 27 

Wes Carpenter working at a Gas Station in Houghton attempts to stop a robbery. 

 



W e s  C a r p e n t e r                  P l a z a  o f  C h a m p i o n s                 P a g e  22 | 27 

Wes Carpenter’s family land in North Rose Hill when it flooded.  His mom, Ella Carpenter, is in the picture.

 



W e s  C a r p e n t e r                  P l a z a  o f  C h a m p i o n s                 P a g e  23 | 27 

Wes Carpenter featured in a Then and Now… article, he is the one throwing the ball.

      

  



W e s  C a r p e n t e r                  P l a z a  o f  C h a m p i o n s                 P a g e  24 | 27 

Wes Carpenter featured in Then (1952) and Now (1976) article. 

 

  





W e s  C a r p e n t e r                  P l a z a  o f  C h a m p i o n s                 P a g e  26 | 27 

Wes’ wife, Carol Carpenter (formerly Wilson), at her first job at the Hair Tamer in Kingsgate (second from 

left). 

 

 

Wes Carpenter’s sister whom he gave away at her wedding. 

 



W e s  C a r p e n t e r                  P l a z a  o f  C h a m p i o n s                 P a g e  27 | 27 

Wes’s mom, Ella, spawned a new Rhododendron species in her Kirkland garden. It was named the Ella 
Carpenter Rhododendron.  The family would be honored if we could have one planted in a Kirkland Park. 

JARS v60n1 - American Rhododendron Society Plant Registry 
https://scholar.lib.vt.edu/ejournals/JARS/v60n1/v60n1-registry.htm 

(r) 'Ella Carpenter': Elepidote 
rhododendron: Parentage unknown. H: 
Unknown; G (1970): Ella Carpenter, 
Kirkland, WA; N and I (2005): Griswold 
Nursery, Kirkland, WA; REG (2005): Linda 
Malland, Kirkland, WA. Fls 5/lax truss, 
broadly funnel-shaped, c 2" (50mm) long x 
c 2.5" (65mm) wide, with 5-6 wavy-edged 
lobes. Color vivid reddish orange (33A) in 
bud, opening light greenish yellow (4B) 
throughout with vivid orange (28B) 
spotting on three dorsal lobes. Truss 3.5" 
(90mm) high x 3.5" (90mm) wide. Lvs held 
3 years, 4" x 2" (100 x 50mm), elliptic, 
broadly acute apex, flat margins; moderate 
olive green (137B) above; hairless. Shrub 5' 
(1.5m) high x 5' (1.5m) wide; upright habit. 
Plant hardy to at least 0F (-18C). May. 

 

 

 

Wes Carpenter at his Kirkland home with wife Carol, grandson Conner, and daughter Shelli. 



































































 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Department of Parks and Community Services 
123 Fifth Avenue, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587.3000 
www.kirklandwa.gov  

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Park Board 
 
From: Mary Gardocki, Park Planning and Development Manager 
   
Date: January 13, 2021 
 
Subject: 2020-21 Parks CIP Updates   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Park Board receive a presentation on Parks CIP projects during 2020-21. 

BACKGROUND DISCUSSION:  

Kirkland’s Capital Improvement Program (CIP) outlines the funds the City will allocate to capital 
improvement projects over a six-year period based on various City-adopted long-range plans, 
goals and policies. Capital projects are generally large-scale in terms of cost, size and benefit to 
the community. The underlying strategy of the CIP is to designate resources for land 
acquisition, construction, and major maintenance of public facilities necessary for the safe and 
efficient provision of services. A critical element of a balanced CIP is the identification and 
provision of funds to preserve or enhance existing facilities and provide new assets that will 
support service needs and community growth. 

The following major Parks CIP projects funded in 2019-2020 will be presented to show their 
completion, progress or remaining schedule. 

• Juanita Beach Bathhouse Renovation 
• Totem Lake Park 
• 132nd Square Park Stormwater Retrofit, Park Renovation and Synthetic Turf field 
• David Brink Park Shoreline Renovation 
• Parks Play Areas and Accessibility Enhancement – North Kirkland Community Center 

 

 

6.c.

http://www.kirklandwa.gov/


 

 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Department of Parks & Community Services 
123 5th Avenue, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587.3300 
www.kirklandwa.gov  

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Park Board 
 
From: John Lloyd, Deputy Director 
 
Date: January 4, 2021 
 
Subject: Park Board Retreat 
 
 
Recommendation 
That the Park Board discuss and select a date for a Park Board retreat.  
 
Background 
Over the past several years, staff have provided additional training to Park Board on the 
operations of the Parks and Community Services Department. These trainings have typically 
been conducted as a business item during regular meetings. Staff provided some of these 
trainings at the December 2019 and January 2020 meetings. Unfortunately, due to the COVID-
19 pandemic, Park Board met only twice in 2020, with the last meeting being held on February 
12, 2020. Additionally, two new members have been appointed since the Board last met. Rather 
than continuing this model, staff recommend Park Board schedule a separate retreat where 
staff can dedicate the needed time to adequately convey this information to all Board members 
at one time. A dedicated retreat would allow the Board members to focus on the trainings at 
hand, without the need to address any other regular business items. Staff propose the following 
topics for this retreat: 
 
 Topic Estimated Time 
 Teambuilding 30 minutes 
 Park Board 101 60 minutes 
 PCS Department Overview 45 minutes  
 PROS Plan Overview 45 minutes 
 Open Discussion 30 minutes 
 
If Park Board agrees to such a retreat, staff will work with Park Board members to identify a 
date/time that works for everyone.  
 

6.d.

http://www.kirklandwa.gov/


1

John Lloyd

From: Tim MacDonald <tsmacd@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, May 4, 2020 1:43 PM
To: Park Board
Subject: Dog Off-Leash Areas Proposal
Attachments: KPD_-_Tickets_by_Officer_-_Matison.pdf

Hi,  
 
I would like the following to be read at the next meeting of the Parks Board: 
 
In reviewing the Parks Dept. proposal for Dog Off‐Leash Areas, I noticed that only 1 of the 4 proposed options includes a 
solution for Heritage park. I’ve attached data from a city records request that shows nearly half of the off‐leash citations 
issued in the last 2 years were issued at Heritage Park. It would seem a missed opportunity to not address what seems to 
be the greatest source of violations/enforcement. 
 
Secondly, the option from the proposal that does address Heritage Park is for fencing off a portion of the park and does 
not consider off‐leash hours as an alternative. The neighborhood surrounding the park strongly prefers off‐leash hours. I 
suspect that most of the park visitors would prefer the same given the reduced park footprint that would be available to 
all visitors with the introduction of a fenced dog park. 
 
Lastly, it is also the recommendation of Park Ranger Betty Fletcher that we adopt off‐leash hours at Heritage Park. 
 
I would ask the Board to request the Parks Dept to reconsider off‐leash hours in their proposal for Heritage Park. 
 
Thank you, 
Tim MacDonald 
 
 

 

 

7.a.



Ticket Entered Date Ticket 
Number

Ticket Officer 
Personnel ID Incident Address Incident Address Common Name Ticket Charge Statute Description

07/25/2018 09:28:05 308434 072 - Matison 9703 NE JUANITA DR Beach Park Juanita, Juanita Beach, Juanita Beach Park NO LEASH ON DOG
07/25/2018 13:06:24 308435 072 - Matison 9703 NE JUANITA DR Beach Park Juanita, Juanita Beach, Juanita Beach Park NO LEASH ON DOG
10/02/2018 13:39:59 308439 072 - Matison 9703 NE JUANITA DR Beach Park Juanita, Juanita Beach, Juanita Beach Park Animal Waste - Removal Required
10/24/2018 11:24:35 308441 072 - Matison 13032 HOLMES POINT DR NE Denny Park NO LEASH ON DOG
10/25/2018 15:45:16 308442 072 - Matison 111 WAVERLY WAY Heritage Park, Old Waverly School Site NO LEASH ON DOG
10/25/2018 15:48:12 308443 072 - Matison 111 WAVERLY WAY Heritage Park, Old Waverly School Site NO LEASH ON DOG
10/25/2018 15:51:07 308444 072 - Matison 111 WAVERLY WAY Heritage Park, Old Waverly School Site NO LEASH ON DOG
11/07/2018 13:59:41 308445 072 - Matison 111 WAVERLY WAY Heritage Park, Old Waverly School Site NO LEASH ON DOG
11/14/2018 07:33:56 308446 072 - Matison 132ND AVE NE  / NE 132ND ST NO LEASH ON DOG
01/15/2019 07:23:56 308026 072 - Matison 9703 NE JUANITA DR Beach Park Juanita, Juanita Beach, Juanita Beach Park NO LEASH ON DOG
01/15/2019 09:53:59 308450 072 - Matison 9703 NE JUANITA DR Beach Park Juanita, Juanita Beach, Juanita Beach Park NO LEASH ON DOG
02/27/2019 08:19:21 30831 072 - Matison 9703 NE JUANITA DR Beach Park Juanita, Juanita Beach, Juanita Beach Park NO LEASH ON DOG
03/18/2019 15:05:54 308037 072 - Matison 111 WAVERLY WAY Heritage Park, Old Waverly School Site NO LEASH ON DOG
03/18/2019 15:40:38 308041 072 - Matison 111 WAVERLY WAY Heritage Park, Old Waverly School Site NO LEASH ON DOG
03/18/2019 15:40:38 308041 072 - Matison 111 WAVERLY WAY Heritage Park, Old Waverly School Site NO LEASH ON DOG
03/19/2019 08:48:18 308038 072 - Matison 111 WAVERLY WAY Heritage Park, Old Waverly School Site NO LEASH ON DOG
03/19/2019 09:22:29 308039 072 - Matison 111 WAVERLY WAY Heritage Park, Old Waverly School Site NO LEASH ON DOG
03/19/2019 09:32:22 308040 072 - Matison 111 WAVERLY WAY Heritage Park, Old Waverly School Site NO LEASH ON DOG
03/19/2019 09:32:22 308040 072 - Matison 111 WAVERLY WAY Heritage Park, Old Waverly School Site NO LEASH ON DOG
03/29/2019 09:21:26 308045 072 - Matison 1818 6TH ST CRESTWOODS PARK NO LEASH ON DOG
03/29/2019 09:23:42 308044 072 - Matison 1818 6TH ST CRESTWOODS PARK NO LEASH ON DOG
03/29/2019 09:23:42 308044 072 - Matison 1818 6TH ST CRESTWOODS PARK NO LEASH ON DOG
04/10/2019 08:33:21 308079 072 - Matison 9703 NE JUANITA DR Beach Park Juanita, Juanita Beach, Juanita Beach Park NO LEASH ON DOG
06/26/2019 06:31:22 308089 072 - Matison 111 WAVERLY WAY Heritage Park, Old Waverly School Site NO LEASH ON DOG
06/26/2019 08:09:31 308090 072 - Matison 111 WAVERLY WAY Heritage Park, Old Waverly School Site NO LEASH ON DOG
08/02/2019 10:02:47 308096 072 - Matison 9703 NE JUANITA DR Beach Park Juanita, Juanita Beach, Juanita Beach Park NO LEASH ON DOG
09/05/2019 08:02:25 308098 072 - Matison 111 WAVERLY WAY Heritage Park, Old Waverly School Site NO LEASH ON DOG
10/01/2019 07:22:37 309002 072 - Matison 6605 LAKE WASHINGTON BLVD NE Marsh Park NO LEASH ON DOG
10/16/2019 08:36:18 309005 072 - Matison 9703 NE JUANITA DR Beach Park Juanita, Juanita Beach, Juanita Beach Park NO LEASH ON DOG
10/30/2019 09:32:22 309007 072 - Matison 4500 110TH AVE NE Watershed Park NO LEASH ON DOG
12/31/2019 08:11:22 309011 072 - Matison 9703 NE JUANITA DR Beach Park Juanita, Juanita Beach, Juanita Beach Park NO LEASH ON DOG
12/31/2019 08:11:22 309011 072 - Matison 9703 NE JUANITA DR Beach Park Juanita, Juanita Beach, Juanita Beach Park NO LEASH ON DOG
01/09/2020 09:09:34 309012 072 - Matison 25 LAKESHORE PLZ Boat Launch Kirkland, Marina Park NO LEASH ON DOG
01/16/2020 07:30:57 309014 072 - Matison 111 WAVERLY WAY Heritage Park, Old Waverly School Site NO LEASH ON DOG
01/16/2020 07:48:01 309015 072 - Matison 111 WAVERLY WAY Heritage Park, Old Waverly School Site NO LEASH ON DOG


	2021-01-13 Park Board Agenda
	AGENDA
	b. Department Monthly Report


	2020-02-12 Park Board Minutes - DRAFT
	Election of Chair and Vice-Chair
	01_Staff Memo_Plaza of Champions Nomination
	Plaza-of-champions-nomination-guide
	02_PLAZA OF CHAMPIONS HONOREES
	03_Wes Carpenter Nomination
	Letter to Park Board signed
	Application Wes Carpenter
	Wesley Robert Carpenter Nomination
	Vietnam PFC Wesley Carpenter

	Staff Memo 2019-2020 CIP Update
	Park Board Retreat Memo
	Off Leash Dog Email with attachment
	KPD_-_Tickets_by_Officer_-_Matison.pdf
	Sheet1





